
Red Oak Community School District 
604 S Broadway 

Red Oak, Iowa 51566 

712.623.6600 
www.redoakschooldistrict.com 

 

 

Special Board Meeting/Work Session 
 

Meeting Location: Red Oak Jr./Sr. Virtual Learning Center OR 

VIA Internet and phone -visit website for information 

Go To Meeting Link: https://meet.goto.com/679080381 

 

Please Note Work Session will not be Available VIA Internet 

  

Wednesday, August 2, 2023 – 5:30 pm 

 

-  Agenda –  

 
1.0 Call to Order – Board of Directors President Bret Blackman  

2.0 Roll Call – Board of Directors Secretary Heidi Harris  

3.0 Approval of the Agenda – President Bret Blackman  

4.0 Consent Agenda   

4.1 Personnel Considerations  

4.1.1 Hiring of Deb Blomstedt as Part-Time Mathematics Teacher at Red Oak 

Jr-Sr High School for the 2023-2024 school year 

4.1.2 Hiring of Melanie Rohrig as Culinary Arts Teacher at Red Oak Jr-Sr 

High School for the 2023-2024 school year (pending background check) 

4.2 Contract Renewals 

4.2.1 Renewal of HUDL Activities Streaming and Analytics Service for the 

2023-2024 School Year ($11,850.00) 

4.3 Out of State Trips 

4.3.1 FFA Students to Travel to Maryville, MO to Participate in Northwest 

Missouri State University FFA Fall Career Development Event, on 

October 5, 2023 

4.3.2 FFA Students to Travel to Indianapolis, IN to Attend the 96th National 

FFA Convention and Expo, from October 31 through November 5, 2023  

5.0 General Business for the Board of Directors  

5.1 Old Business    

5.2 New Business  

5.2.1 Discussion/Approval of 1st Reading of Board Policy 214.1 

5.2.2 Discussion/Approval of 1st Reading of Board Policies 706-711 

5.2.3 Discussion/Approval of 1st Reading of Board Policy 803.1 

5.2.4 Discussion/Approval of Disposition of Two Disused School Buses 

5.2.5 Discussion/Approval of Boys’ and Girls’ Bowling, Boys’ and Girls’ 

Wrestling, and Boys’ and Girls’ Tennis Interscholastic Activity Sharing 

http://www.redoakschooldistrict.com/
https://meet.goto.com/679080381


Agreement with the Stanton Community School District for the 2023-2024 

school year 

6.0 Reports – None  

7.0 Next Regular Board of Directors Meeting:        Wednesday, August 16, 2023– 5:30 pm  
Red Oak Virtual Learning Center  
Red Oak Jr./Sr. High    

 8.0 Adjournment  

 

 

Board of Directors Work Session  

 
I. A Representative from Alley Poyner Macchietto Architecture will Review Cost 

Projections and Recommendations for Intermediate and Long-Term Capital 

Improvement Projects Identified in the District’s Long-Range Strategic Facilities Plan 

II. Discussion of 2024 Legislative Priorities 

 



For a full list of payments and adjustments, see the following pages of this invoice. Page 1 of 2

Invoice
H00019211

Remit payment to: All other mail:  

Hudl
600 P Street, Suite 400
Lincoln, NE 68508 USA Invoice Date: 07/16/2023

Due Date: 08/15/2023

Hudl
29775 Network Place
Chicago, IL 60673-1775 USA
Hudl’s W9: hudl.com/p/w9
billing@hudl.com

  
       Payments via ACH
   Please include your invoice number in the transaction details field 
   to ensure proper credit to your account (H00019211).
   Send all payment remittance emails to 
   USAccountsReceivable@hudl.com. 

Bank Name: 
Bank Address: 

Account Name:
Account Number: 
Routing Number: 

JP Morgan Chase
42 Broadway
New York, NY 10004
Agile Sports Technologies, Inc.
659831215
111000614 

To: Red Oak High School

 
Red Oak, Iowa 51566-1114
United States

Subscription Dates Unit Price Row Total
Hudl AD Package 08/15/2023-08/14/2024 11,850.00 11,850.00 

Sales Tax  0.00

Total 11,850.00 

Balance 11,850.00

Notes
The package above was developed exclusively for Red Oak High School.
- Red Oak High School 17452

mailto:USAccountsReceivable@hudl.com


Page 2 of 2

Payments and Adjustments

All payments and adjustments have already been applied to the balance shown on this invoice. The following list is for 
your records.

All amounts are in USD

DATE TRANSACTION 
NUMBER

TYPE NOTES APPLIED AMOUNT

No payments or adjustments have been applied to this invoice.

Tax Breakdown by Tax Rate

All taxes have already been applied to the balance shown on this invoice. The following list is a breakdown by tax rate for your records.

All amounts are in USD

TAX NAME TAX RATE TYPE TAX RATE TAX AMOUNT

No taxes have been applied to this invoice due to customer's tax exemption status.

Additional Information

By paying this invoice, you agree that the purchase is subject to the Organization Terms of Service found at 
www.hudl.com/eula.

Agile Sports Technologies, Inc. dba Hudl. EIN is 26-0568054. Go to hudl.com/p/w9 for a copy of Hudl's W9.

W9 Address:
Hudl

600 P Street, Ste. 400

Lincoln, NE 68508

Play to Win.
600 P Street, Suite 400 | Lincoln, NE | 68508

billing@hudl.com



214.1 - Public Participation in Board Meetings 
 
The board recognizes the importance of citizen participation in school district matters.  In order 
to assure citizens are heard and board meetings are conducted efficiently and in an organized 
manner, the board may will set time aside specific time for public comment. citizen 
participation, either at a specific time during the meeting or during the discussion of agenda 
items.  The board has the discretion to limit the amount of time set aside for public 
participation.  If the pressure of business or other circumstances dictate, the board president 
may decide to not set time aside for citizen participation or to eliminate this practice. 
 
Public Comment During Board Meetings 
 
Citizens wishing to address the board on a certain agenda item during public comment must 
notify the board secretary or superintendent or board president prior to the board meeting. The 
board president will recognize these individuals to make their comments at the appropriate 
time during public comment.  Citizens wishing to present petitions to the board may also do so 
at this time.  However, the board will only receive the petitions and not act upon them or their 
contents.   
 
The board has the discretion to limit the amount of time set aside for public 
participation.  Normally, speakers will be limited to two (2) minutes with a total allotted time 
for public participation of thirty (30) minutes.  However, the board president may modify this 
time limit, if deemed appropriate or necessary.  Public comment is a time set aside for 
community input, but the board will not discuss or take any action on any matter during public 
comment.   
 
Public comment shall be limited to regular board meetings and will not be routinely held during 
special board meetings or board work sessions.  
 
If the board has set time aside for citizen participation and citizens wish to address the board, 
the board president will recognize these individuals to make their comments at the appropriate 
time.   
 
Petitions to Place a Topic on the Agenda 
 
Individuals who wish for an item to be placed on the board agenda may submit a 
valid petition to the board.  For a petition to be valid, it must be signed by at least 500 eligible 
electors of the district, or ten percent of the individuals who voted in the last school election, 
whichever number is lower.  
 
Upon receiving a valid petition to the board to place a proposal on the next board agenda for 
public hearing, the board will place the proposal identified in the petition on the agenda of the 
next regular meeting, or a special meeting held within 30 days of receipt of the petition.  The 
board will provide a sign-up sheet for all individuals who wish to speak on the proposal, and 



individuals will be called to speak in order of sign-up.  The sign-up sheet will require each 
individual to list their legal name and mailing address.  Each speaker will be limited to an 
amount of time established by the board president that is reasonable and necessary based on 
the number of speakers signed up.  The same time limit will apply to all speakers on the 
proposal.  Each individual will be limited to one opportunity to speak. The board maintains 
absolute discretion on whether or not to discuss or act on the public comments made on the 
proposal. If a petition is related to curriculum, the district maintains discretion to determine 
whether to stop teaching that curriculum until the board holds the public hearing to discuss 
the curriculum.  
 
The orderly process of the board meeting will not be interfered with or disrupted. Only those 
speakers recognized by the board president will be allowed to speak. Comments by others are 
out of order.  If disruptive, the individual making the comments or any other individual causing 
disruption may be asked to leave the board meeting.  
 
The board has a significant interest in maintaining the decorum of its meetings, and it is 
expected that members of the public and the board will address each other with civility.  The 
orderly process of the board meeting will not be interfered with or disrupted by public 
comment.  Only those speakers individuals recognized by the board president will be allowed to 
speak.  Comments by others are out of order.  If disruptive, the individual causing disruption 
making the comments or any other individual causing disruption may be asked to leave the 
board meeting.  Defamatory comments may be subject to legal action.    
 
Individuals who have a complaint about employees may bring their complaint to the board only 
after they have followed board policy addressing citizens’ complaints.  Students who have a 
complaint may only bring their complaint to the board after they have followed board policy 
addressing students’ complaints. 

 

Approved March 26, 2018      

Reviewed September 27, 2021     

Revised March 26, 2018 
 



706 – Payroll Procedures 
 
706.1 - Payroll Periods (no changes) 
 
The payroll period for the school district is monthly.  Employees shall be paid on the 10th day of 
each month.  If this day is a holiday, recess, or weekend, the payroll is paid on the last working 
day prior to the holiday, recess or weekend. 
 
It shall be the responsibility of the board secretary to issue payroll to employees in compliance 
with this policy. 

  

Approved November 11, 2013     
Reviewed November 26, 2018  August 2, 2023   
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 
706.2 - Payroll Deductions (no changes) 
 
Ease of administration is the primary consideration for payroll deductions, other than those 
required by law.  Payroll deductions are made for federal income tax withholdings, Iowa income 
tax withholdings, social security, and the Iowa Public Employees’ Retirement System (IPERS). 
 
Employees may elect to have payments withheld for district-related and mutually agreed upon 
group insurance coverage and/or tax-sheltered annuity programs.  Requests for these 
deductions will be made in writing to the superintendent.  Requests for purchase or change of 
tax-sheltered annuities may be made at any time while the individual is employed in the Red 
Oak Community School District. 
 

It is the responsibility of the superintendent to determine which additional payroll deductions 
will be allowed. 

  

Approved November 11, 2013     
Reviewed October 29, 2013   August 2, 2023      
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 
706.3 - Pay Deductions (no changes) 
 
The district provides leaves of absences to allow employees to be absent from work to attend 
to important matters outside of the workplace. As public employers, school districts are 
expected to record and monitor the work that employees perform and to conform to principles 
of public accountability in their compensation practices. 



Consistent with principles of public accountability, it is the policy of the district that, when an 
employee is absent from work for less than one work day and the employee does not use 
accrued leave for such absence, the employee’s pay will be reduced or the employee will be 
placed on leave without pay if: 
 

• the employee has not sought permission to use paid leave for this partial-day absence, 
• the employee has sought permission to use paid leave for this partial-day absence and 

permission has been denied, 
• the employee’s accrued paid leave has been exhausted, or 

• the employee chooses to use leave without pay. 
 

In each case in which an employee is absent from work for part of a work day, a deduction from 
compensation will be made or the employee will be placed on leave without pay for a period of 
time which is equal to the employee’s absence from the employee’s regularly scheduled hours 
of work on that day. 
 
The district complies with all applicable laws with respect to payment of wages and benefits to 
employees including laws such as the federal Fair Labor Standards Act and the Iowa Wage 
Payment Collection Act.  The district will not make pay deductions that violate either the 
federal or state laws. 
 

Any employee who believes that the district has made an inappropriate deduction or has failed 
to make proper payment regarding wages or benefits is encouraged to immediately consult 
with the appropriate supervisor. Alternatively, any employee may file a formal written 
complaint with the Board Secretary.  Within 15 business days of receiving the complaint, the 
Board Secretary will make a determination as to whether the pay deductions were appropriate 
and provide the employee with a written response that may include reimbursement for any pay 
deductions that were not appropriately made.  This complaint procedure is available in addition 
to any other complaint process that also may be available to employees. 

  

Approved November 11, 2013           
Reviewed October 29, 2013  August 2, 2023    
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 

707 - Fiscal Reports 
 
707.1 - Secretary’s Reports (no changes) 
 

The board secretary will report to the board each month about the receipts, disbursements and 
balances of the various funds.  This report will be in written form and sent to the board with the 
agenda for the board meeting. 

  



  

Approved November 11, 2013     
Reviewed November 26, 2018    August 2, 2023 
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 
707.2 - Treasurer’s Annual Report (no changes) 
 
At the annual meeting, the treasurer will give the annual report stating the amount held over, 
received, paid out, and on hand in the general and Physical Plant and Equipment funds.  This 
report is in written form and sent to the board with the agenda for the board meeting.  The 
treasurer will also furnish the board with a sworn statement from each depository showing the 
balance then on deposit. 
 

It is the responsibility of the treasurer to submit this report to the board annually. 

  

Approved November 11, 2013     
Reviewed October 29, 2013  August 2, 2023       
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 
707.3 - Publication of Financial Reports (no changes) 
 
Each month the schedule of bills allowed by the board is published in a newspaper designated 
as a newspaper for official publication.  Annually, the total salaries paid to employees regularly 
employed by the school district will also be published in a newspaper designated as a 
newspaper for official publication. 
 
It is the responsibility of the board secretary to publish these reports in a timely manner. 

  

Approved November 11, 2013     
Reviewed November 26, 2018    August 2, 2023 
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 
707.4 – Audit (no changes) 
 
To review the funds and accounts of the school district, the board will employ an auditor to 
perform an annual audit of the financial affairs of the school district.  The superintendent will 
use a request for proposal procedure in selecting an auditor.  The administration will cooperate 
with the auditors.  Such annual audit reports shall remain on permanent file in the central office 
of the school district. 



  

Approved November 11, 2013     
Reviewed November 26, 2018   August 2, 2023  
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 
707.5 - Internal Controls (no changes) 
 
The Board expects all board members, employees, volunteers, consultants, vendors, 
contractors, students and other parties maintaining any relationship with the school district to 
act with integrity, due diligence, and in accordance with all laws in their duties involving the 
school district’s resources.  The board is entrusted with public dollars and no one connected 
with the school district should do anything to erode that trust. 
 

Internal control is the responsibility of all employees of the school district. The superintendent, 
business manager and board secretary shall be responsible for developing internal controls 
designed to prevent and detect fraud, financial impropriety, or fiscal irregularities within the 
school district subject to review and approval by the board.  Administrators shall be alert for 
any indication of fraud, financial impropriety, or irregularity within the administrator’s area of 
responsibility. 
 

Any employee who suspects fraud, impropriety, or irregularity shall report his/her suspicions 
immediately to his/her immediate supervisor and/or the superintendent, and/or an audit 
committee member.  The superintendent and/or an audit committee member shall have 
primary responsibility for any necessary investigations and shall coordinate investigative efforts 
with the board’s legal counsel, auditing firm, and other internal or external departments and 
agencies, including law enforcement officials, as the superintendent and/or an audit committee 
member may deem appropriate. 
 

Employees bringing forth a legitimate concern about a potential impropriety will not be 
retaliated against and those who do retaliate against such an employee will be subject to 
disciplinary action up to, and including, discharge. 
 
In the event the concern or complaint involves the superintendent, the concern shall be 
brought to the attention of the board president and/or an audit committee member who shall 
be empowered to contact the board’s legal counsel, insurance agent, auditing firm, and any 
other agency to investigate the concern or complaint. 
 
Upon approval of the board, the superintendent and/or an audit committee member may 
contact the State Auditor or elect to employ the school district’s auditing firm or State Auditor 
to conduct a complete or partial forensic/internal control audit annually or otherwise as often 
as deemed necessary.  The superintendent is authorized to order a complete forensic audit if, in 
the superintendent’s judgment, such an audit would be useful and beneficial to the school 



district.  The superintendent and/or an audit committee member shall ensure the State Auditor 
is notified of any suspected embezzlement or theft pursuant to Iowa law.  In the event there is 
an investigation, records will be maintained for use in the investigation.  Individuals found to 
have altered or destroyed records will be subject to disciplinary action, up to, and including 
termination. 

  

Approved November 11, 2013     
Reviewed November 26, 2018    August 2, 2023 
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 
707.5R1 - Internal Controls Regulation (minor additions) 
 
Fraud, financial improprieties, or irregularities include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Forgery or unauthorized alteration of any document or account belonging to the district. 
• Forgery or unauthorized alteration of a check, bank draft, or any other financial 

document. 
• Misappropriation of funds, securities, supplies, or other assets. 
• Impropriety in the handling of money or reporting of financial transactions. 
• Profiteering because of “insider” information of district information or activities. 
• Disclosing confidential and/or proprietary information to outside parties. 
• Accepting or seeking anything of material value, other than items used in the normal 

course of advertising, from contractors, vendors, or persons providing services to the 
district. 

• Destroying, removing, or inappropriately using district records, furniture, fixtures, or 
equipment. 

• Failing to provide financial records to authorized state or local entities. 
• Failure to cooperate fully with any financial auditors, investigators or law enforcement. 
• Any other dishonest or fraudulent act involving district monies or resources. 

• Acting for purposes of personal financial gain, rather than in the best interest of the 
district. 

• Providing false, inaccurate or misleading financial information to district administrators 

or the board of directors.  

The superintendent and/or an audit committee member shall investigate reports of fraudulent 
activity in a manner that protects the confidentiality of the parties and the facts.  All employees 
involved in the investigation shall be advised to keep information about the investigation 
confidential. 
 
If an investigation substantiates the occurrence of a fraudulent activity, the superintendent, 
and/or an audit committee member, or board vice-president if the investigation centers on the 
superintendent, shall issue a report to the board and appropriate personnel.  The final 



disposition of the matter and any decision to file or not file a criminal complaint or to refer the 
matter to the appropriate law enforcement and/or regulatory agency for independent 
investigation shall be made in consultation with district legal counsel.  The results of the 
investigation shall not be disclosed to or discussed with anyone other than those individuals 
with a legitimate right to know until the results are made public. 
 

 

708 - District Records 
 
708.1 - District Records (some additions) 

 
School district records are housed in the central administration office of the school district.  It is 
the responsibility of the superintendent to oversee the maintenance and accuracy of the 
records.  The following records are kept and preserved according to the schedule below: 
 

• Secretary’s financial records................................................  Permanently 

• Treasurer’s financial records................................................  Permanently 

• Minutes of the Board of Directors........................................  Permanently 

• Annual audit reports............................................................  Permanently 

• Annual budget......................................................................  Permanently 

• Permanent record of individual pupil...................................  Permanently 

• School election results.......................................................... Permanently 

• Real property records (e.g., deeds, abstracts)...................... Permanently 

• Records of payment of judgments against the school 
district................................................................................  20 years 

• Bonds and bond coupons.....................................................  10 years 11 years after 
maturity, cancellation, 
transfer, redemption, and/or 
replacement 

• Written contracts.................................................................. 10 years 11 years 

• Cancelled warrants, check stubs, bank statements, bills,  
invoices, and related records.............................................  5 years 

• Recordings of closed meetings.............................................  1 year 

• Program grants.....................................................................  As determined by the grant 
• Nonpayroll personnel records..............................................  7 years 

• Payroll records...................................................................... 3 years 

• Employment applications.....................................................  2 years 

• School meal program accounts/records.............................. 3 years after submission of 
the final claim for 
reimbursement 

 
 



In the event that any federal or state agency requires a record be retained for a period of time 
longer than that listed above for audit purposes or otherwise, the record shall be retained 
beyond the listed period as long as is required for the resolution of the issue by the federal or 
state agency.  
 
Employees’ records are housed in the central administration office of the school district.  The 
employees’ records are maintained by the superintendent, the building administrator, the 
employee’s immediate supervisor, and the board secretary. 
 

An inventory of the furniture, equipment, and other non-consumable items other than real 
property of the school district is conducted annually under the supervision of the 
superintendent.  This report is filed with the board secretary. 
 
The permanent and cumulative records of students currently enrolled in the school district are 
housed in the central administration office of the attendance center where the student 
attends.  Permanent records must be housed in a fireproof vault.  The building administrator is 
responsible for keeping these records current.  Records of students who have graduated or are 
no longer enrolled in the school district are housed in the high school principal’s office.  These 
records will be maintained by the superintendent. 
 
The superintendent may electronically store and/or back-up or use any other reliably mass 
storage method to preserve school district records and may destroy paper copies of the records 
if they are more than three years old.  A properly authenticated reproduction of a microfilmed 
record meets the same legal requirements as the original record. 
 
The board secretary shall act as custodian of public records of the district and shall be 
responsible for implementing the requirements of the Iowa public records law.  Such records 
shall be open for public examination, except that records required or authorized to be kept 
confidential by law shall not be made available for public examination.  The board secretary 
may seek opinion of counsel as to whether a record is a public or confidential record prior to 
releasing the document.  Public records may be examined during hours in which the central 
office is open, generally 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  Such examination shall be done under the 
supervision of the board secretary or the board secretary’s designee.  No person shall destroy, 
alter, disorganize, or damage any record or remove any record from the central office.  If the 
examination will take longer than 15 minutes, the board secretary is authorized to charge 
his/her or the designee’s hourly wage for duties in supervising the examination.  Copies may be 
made of public records upon payment of a designated fee per page. 

  

Approved November 11, 2013     
Reviewed October 29, 2013     August 2, 2023    
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 



709 - Insurance Program 
 
709.1 - Insurance Program (no changes) 

 
The board will maintain a comprehensive insurance program to provide adequate coverage 
against major types of risk, loss, or damage, as well as legal liability. The comprehensive 
insurance program is reviewed once every three years.  
 
The board will purchase insurance at replacement values, when possible, after reviewing the 
costs and availability of such insurance. Insurance will only be purchased through legally 
licensed Iowa insurance agents. 
 

The school district will assume the risk of property damage, legal liability, and dishonesty in 
cases in which the exposure is so small or dispersed that a loss does not significantly affect the 
operation of the education program or financial condition of the school district.  Insurance of 
buildings, structures, or property in the open will not generally be purchased to cover loss 
exposures below $1,000 unless such insurance is required by statute or contract. 
  
Administration of the insurance program, making recommendations for additional insurance 
coverage, placing the insurance coverage and loss prevention activities is the responsibility of 
the superintendent.  The board secretary is responsible for maintaining the fixed assets 
management system, processing claims and maintaining loss records.  The board may retain a 
private organization for fixed assets management services.  

 

Approved November 11, 2013           
Reviewed October 29, 2013  August 2, 2023 
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 

710 - School Food Services 
 
710.1 - School Food Program (no changes) 
 
The purpose of the school food program shall be to provide nutritional, balanced meals to the 
students of the school district on a non-profit basis and to utilize the program as an instrument 
to teach nutrition education. 
 
The school district will operate a school lunch and breakfast program in each attendance 
center.  The school food program services will include hot lunches through participation in the 
National School Lunch Program and supplementary foods for students during the school 
day.  Students may bring their lunches from home and purchase milk or juice and other incidental 
items. 



 
School food service facilities are provided to serve students and employees when school is in 
session and during school-related activities.  They may also be used under the supervision of 
the food service director for food service to employee groups, parent-teacher meetings, civic 
organizations meeting for the purpose of better understanding the schools, and senior citizens 
in accordance with board policy. 
 

The school food program is operated on a nonprofit basis.  The revenues of the school food 
program will be used only for paying the regular operating costs of the school food 
program.  Supplies of the school food program will only be used for the school food program. 
  
The board will set, and periodically review, the prices for school lunches, breakfast and special 
milk programs.  It is the responsibility of the superintendent to make a recommendation 
regarding the prices of school lunch, breakfast and milk.  Employees, students and others will 
be required to purchase tickets for meals consumed. 
 
It is the responsibility of the food service director to administer the program and to cooperate 
with the superintendent and head cook for the proper functioning of the school food program. 

  

Approved December 16, 2013      
Reviewed November 11, 2013    August 2, 2023 
Revised November 26, 2018 

 

 

710.2 - Free or Reduced Cost Meals Eligibility (revisions) 
 

Students enrolled and attending school in the school district who meet USDA eligibility 
guidelines will be provided the school nutrition program services at no cost or at a reduced 
price. are unable to afford the special milk program, the cost or a portion of the cost of the 
school lunch, breakfast and supplemental foods will be provided the school food program 
services at no cost or at a reduced cost. 
 
The district shall at least twice annually notify all families of the availability, eligibility criteria, 
and application procedures for free or reduced price meals in accordance with state and federal 
law.   
 

It is the responsibility of the building principal to determine if a student qualifies for free or 
reduced cost school food services the eligibility of students for free or reduced price school 
nutrition programs, in accordance with criteria established by state and federal law.  Students 
whom the principal believes are improperly nourished will not be denied the school food 
program services simply because the paperwork has not been completed. If school personnel 
have knowledge of a student who is in need of free or reduced-price meals, school personnel 
shall contact the building principal. 



 
Students who participate in free or reduced price meal programs will not be distinguished in 
any way from students who pay the regular price; great care shall be taken to protect the 
anonymity of these students.  Their names will not be made known to any person except such 
staff member or members as needed to make the special arrangements for them. 
 
Employees will be required to pay for meals consumed. 
 
It is the responsibility of the superintendent to develop administrative regulations for 
implementing this policy. 
 
Approved December 16, 2013      
Reviewed November 11, 2013   August 2, 2023  
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 
710.3 Meal Charges and Negative Balances (no changes) 

 

MEAL CHARGES 
 
In accordance with state and federal law, The Red Oak Community School District adopts the 
following policy to ensure school district employees, families and students have a shared 
understanding of expectations regarding meal charges.  The policy seeks to allow students to 
receive the nutrition they need to stay focused during the school day, prevent the overt 
identification of students with insufficient funds to pay for school meals, and maintain the 
financial integrity of the nonprofit school nutrition program. 

 

Payment of Meals 

  

I.    Grades K-6th 

• Students will be allowed to charge reimbursable meals. 
• Ala carte items are not part of the USDA program and are not allowed to be charged if a 

student has a negative balance. 
II.    Grades 7th-12th 

• Students will be allowed to charge reimbursable meals up to $10.00 

• Ala carte items are not part of the USDA program and are not allowed to be charged if a 
student has a negative balance. 

III. District Employees 

• District employees shall not be allowed to charge meals or carry a negative balance. 
• All meal purchases must be prepaid before meal service begins 

 

Students who qualify for free meals shall never be denied a reimbursable meal, even if they 
have accrued a negative balance from previous purchases. 



 
Negative Account Balances 

 
The school district will make reasonable efforts to notify families when meal account balances 
are low. Additionally, the school district will make reasonable efforts to collect unpaid meal 
charges classified as delinquent debt. Families will be notified by an automated calling system 
and e-mail notification.  Negative balances of more than $50 not paid prior to the end of the 
month will be turned over to the Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee for collection. 
Negative balances of more than $15 not paid prior to the end of the school year will be turned 
over to the Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee for collection.  Options for collection 
may include: collection agencies, small claims court, or any other legal method permitted by 
law. 
 
Free/Reduced Priced Meals 

 

Free and reduced priced meals are available to those families who qualify.  
Information regarding free or reduced priced meals will be provided at least twice annually to 
the parents or guardians of all enrolled students. 
Students who qualify for free meals shall never be denied a reimbursable meal, even if they 
have accrued a negative balance from previous purchases. Students with outstanding meal 
charge debt shall be allowed to purchase a meal if the student pays for the meal when it is 
received. 
 
If a student owes money for five or more meals, school personnel may contact the student’s 
parent or guardian to provide information regarding the application for free or reduced priced 
meals or to provide information on other options or assistance available. 
 
Unpaid Student Meals Account 
 

The district will establish an unpaid student meals account in a school nutrition fund. Funds 
from private sources and funds from the district flexibility account may be deposited into the 
unpaid school meals account in accordance with law. Funds deposited into this account shall be 
used only to pay individual student meal debt. 
 
Communication of the Policy 

 

The policy and supporting information regarding meal charges shall be provided to: 
•    All households at or before the start of each school year; 
•    Students and families who transfer into the district, at time of transfer; and 

•    All staff responsible for enforcing any aspect of the policy.  
 

Records of how and when the policy and supporting information was communicated to 
households and staff will be retained. 
 



The Superintendent may develop an administrative process to implement this policy. 
 

 

Approved: October 10, 2022 

Reviewed: August 2, 2023 

Revised 

 

 

711 – Transportation 
 
711.1 - Student Eligibility for School Transportation Services (minor change) 
 
Elementary and middle school students living more than two miles from their designated school 
attendance centers and high school students living more than three miles from their designated 
attendance centers are entitled to transportation to and from their attendance center at the 
expense of the school district. 
 
The board shall annually approve bus routes upon the recommendation of the superintendent 
and the transportation director.  Transportation Rroutes will be determined after considering 
the number of students to be transported in each area of the district, the seating capacity of 
the buses, the distance to be traveled, safety factors, efficiency and economy of the routes, and 
such other factors as deemed pertinent.  The superintendent or the superintendent’s designee 
may temporarily adjust routes as deemed necessary. 
 
Transportation of students who require special education services will generally be provided as 
for other students, when appropriate.  Specialized transportation of a student to and from a 
special education instructional service is a function of that service and, therefore, an 
appropriate expenditure of special education instructional funds generated through the 
weighting plan. 
 

Transportation of a student to and from a special education support service is a function of that 
service, and is specified in the individualized education program (IEP) or the individualized 
family service plan (IFSP).  When the IEP or IFSP team determines that unique transportation 
arrangements are required and the arrangements are specified in the IEP or IFSP, the school 
district will provide one or more of the following transportation arrangements for instructional 
services and the AEA for support services: 
 

• Transportation from the student’s residence to the location of the special education and 
back to the student’s residence, or child care placement for students below the age of 
six. 

• Special assistance or adaptations in getting the student to and from and on and off the 
vehicle, en route to and from the special education. 



• Reimbursement of the actual costs of transportation when by mutual agreement the 
parents provide transportation for the student to and from the special education. 

 
The school district is not required to provide reimbursement to parents who elect to provide 
transportation in lieu of agency-provided transportation. 
 
A student may be required, at the board’s discretion, to meet a school vehicle without 
reimbursement up to three-fourths of a mile.  The board may require the parent to transport 
their children up to two miles to connect with school bus vehicles at the expense of the school 
district when conditions deem it advisable.  It is within the discretion of the board to determine 
such conditions. 
 

Parents of students who live where transportation by bus is impracticable or unavailable may 
be required to furnish transportation to and from the designated attendance center at the 
expense of the school district.  Parents, who transport their children at the expense of the 
school district, are reimbursed at the rate per mile set by the state.  
 

Transportation arrangements made by agreement with a neighboring school district will follow 
the terms of the agreement.  Students, who choose to attend a school in a school district other 
than their resident school district, will provide transportation to and from the school at their 
own expense. 

 

Approved November 11, 2013     
Reviewed October 29, 2013 August 2, 2023         
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 
711.2 - Student Conduct on School Transportation (no changes) 
 
Students utilizing school transportation will conduct themselves in an orderly manner fitting to 
their age level and maturity with mutual respect and consideration for the rights of the school 
vehicle driver and the other passengers.  Students who fail to behave in an orderly manner will 
be subject to disciplinary measures. 
 

The driver will have the authority to maintain order on the school vehicle.  It is the 
responsibility of the driver to report misconduct to the transportation director and building 
administrator. 
 
The board supports the use of video cameras, including video and audio recordings, on school 
buses used for transportation to and from school as well as for field trips, curricular or 
extracurricular events.  The video cameras may be used to monitor student and/or employee 
behavior and may be used as evidence in a student or employee disciplinary proceeding.  The 



video recordings may be student records or employment records subject to school district 
confidentiality, board policy, and administrative regulations. 
 
After one violation of the bus conduct rules, or for a serious violation of bus conduct rules, the 
building principal will have the authority to suspend transportation privileges of the student or 
impose other appropriate discipline. 

  

Approved December 16, 2013      
Reviewed November 11, 2013  August 2, 2023   
Revised November 26, 2018 

 

 

 

711.2R1 - Student Conduct on School Transportation Regulation (no changes) 
 

All persons riding in school district vehicles will adhere to the following rules.  The 

driver, sponsor or chaperones are to follow the school bus discipline procedure for 

student violations of this policy.  Video cameras may be in operation on the school 

buses. 

 

 1.    Bus riders will be at the designated loading point before the bus arrival time. 
 2.    Bus riders will wait until the bus comes to a complete stop before attempting to enter. 
 3.    Riders must not extend arms or heads out of the windows at any time. 
 4.    Aisles must be kept cleared at all times. 
 5.    All bus riders will load and unload through the right front door.  The emergency door is 

for emergencies only. 
 6.    A bus rider will depart from the bus at the designated point unless written permission to 

get off at a different location is given to the driver. 
 7.    A rider may be assigned a seat by the driver. 
 8.    Riders who damage seats or other equipment will reimburse the district for the cost of 

the repair or replacement (that is, vandalism is not allowed). 
 9.    Riders are not permitted to leave their seats while the vehicle is in motion. 
10.   Waste containers are provided on all buses for bus riders’ use. 
11.   Permission to open windows must be obtained from the driver. 
12.   Classroom conduct is to be observed by students while riding the bus except for 

ordinary conversation (students are to talk lowly and softly). 
13.   The driver is in charge of the students and the vehicle, and the driver is to be obeyed 

promptly and cheerfully.  Verbal abuse will not be tolerated. 
14.   Students will assist in looking after the safety and comfort of younger students. 
15.   A bus rider who must cross the roadway to board or depart from the bus will pass in 

front of the bus (no closer than 10 feet), look in both directions and proceed to cross 
the road or highway only on signal from the driver. 



16.   Objects of any kind are not to be thrown about the vehicle nor out through the 
windows. 

17.   Shooting paper wads, squirt guns or other material in the vehicle is not permitted. 
18.   Students will keep feet off the seats. 
19.   Roughhousing in the vehicle is prohibited. 
20.   Students will refrain from crowding or pushing. 
21.   Students are to “keep their hands to themselves.” 

22.   The use or possession of alcohol, tobacco or look-alike substances is prohibited in the 
vehicle. 

23.   The Good Conduct Rule is in effect. 

 

 
711.2R2 - Use of Video Cameras on School Transportation Regulation (no changes) 

 

The board supports the use of video cameras on school transportation as a means to monitor 
and maintain a safe environment for students and employees.  The video cameras may be used 
on buses or other school vehicles used for transportation to and from school, field trips, 
curricular events and extracurricular events.  The contents of the video recordings may be used 
as evidence in a student or employee disciplinary proceeding. 
 
Student and Employment Records 
 

The content of the video recordings may be a student or employment record subject to board 
policy and administrative regulations regarding confidential student and employment 
records.  If the video recording is considered a student record, only those persons with a 
legitimate educational purpose may view the video recordings.  In most instances, those 
individuals with a legitimate educational purpose may be the superintendent, building 
principal, transportation director, bus driver and special education staffing team.  A video 
recording recorded during a school-sponsored trip, such as an athletic event, may also be 
accessible to the sponsor or coach of the activity.  If the content of the video recording 
becomes the subject of a student or employee disciplinary proceeding, it will be treated like 
other evidence in the proceeding. 
 
Notice 
 
The school district will annually provide the following notice to students and parents: 
 

The Red Oak Community School District Board of Directors has authorized the use of video 
cameras on school district buses.  The video cameras will be used to monitor student 
behavior to maintain order on the school buses to promote and maintain a safe 
environment.  Students and parents are hereby notified that the content of the video 
recordings may be used in a student disciplinary proceeding.  The content of the video 
recordings are confidential student records and will be retained with other student 
records.  Video recordings will only be retained if necessary for use in a student disciplinary 



proceeding or other matter as determined necessary by the administration.  Parents may 
request to view video recordings of their child if the video recordings are used in a 
disciplinary proceeding involving their child. 
 

The following notice will also be placed on all school transportation equipped with a video 
camera: 
 

This vehicle is equipped with a video/audio monitoring system. 
 

Review of Video Recordings 

The school district may review video recordings randomly.  The video recordings may be 
recirculated for erasure after 10 school days. 
 
Viewing of video recordings is limited to the individuals having a legitimate educational 
purpose.  A written log will be kept of those individuals viewing the video recordings stating the 
time, name of individual viewing, and the date the video recording was viewed. 
 

Video Monitoring System 

Video cameras will be rotated randomly on school district transportation. 
Determination of how video cameras will be used and which school buses or vehicles will be 
equipped with video equipment will be made by the superintendent in consultation with the 
building principals and transportation director. 
 
Student Conduct 

Students are prohibited from tampering with the video cameras on the school buses or 
vehicles.  Students found in violation of this regulation will be disciplined in accordance with the 
school district discipline policy and Good Conduct Rule and will reimburse the school district for 
any repairs or replacement necessary as a result of the tampering. 
 

 
711.2R3 - School Transportation Discipline Procedures (no changes) 
 
The operation of safe, efficient, and economical transportation requires that all passengers 
observe the associated set of regulations.  In order to avoid any misunderstanding that might 
develop at a future date, the procedures described below will be followed in the event of a 
violation of the rules. 
 

First Violation; 
 

1. The driver will discuss the problem with the child. 
2. The driver will file a bus conduct report with the transportation manager and principal. 
3. The driver will contact the parent.  It is the driver’s responsibility to make the initial 

parent contact and try to solve the problem.  If that does not work, then the 
transportation supervisor will take over. 



 
Second Violation: 
 

1. The driver will file a bus conduct report with the transportation manager and the 
principal. 

2. The transportation manager shall call the parent, or make a personal contact, to inform 
the parent of a second violation. 

3. The principal will arrange a meeting with the principal (or designee), transportation 
manager, driver, and student. 

4. Bus riding privileges may be suspended for one day to two weeks.  This decision will be 
made by the principal, with input from the transportation manager and the driver. 
 

Third Violation:  On the third violation, the student may lose bus riding privileges for three days 
to one semester; this decision will be made by the principal, with input from the transportation 
manager and the driver. 
 
Any Further Violations:  Automatic loss of bus-riding privileges for a minimum of one 
semester.  A student returning after this level of the procedures will again face the loss of bus 
riding-privileges for a semester for another violation. 
 
When, in the judgment of the bus driver, behavior by a rider is such that it becomes an 
immediate threat to the safety of other riders, driver and/or the bus itself, the driver will take 
action to remove the student from the bus without going through the above steps.  In severe 
cases, when a student must be removed before reaching his/her destination, the driver will 
stop the bus in a safe place and call for assistance.  The student will remain on the bus until 
assistance arrives.  Then the student will be removed and transported by the person(s) 
providing assistance. 
In summary, when a threat to bus safety occurs, the students(s) responsible may lose bus riding 
privileges without going through the “First Violation, Second Violation, Third Violation” process 
as listed above. 
 

To ride a school bus is a privilege paid for by property taxes, a privilege that should never be 
lost.  However, if bus safety is jeopardized due to student behavior, the student will lose bus 
riding privileges.  We trust that we will receive parent/guardian support in our effort to achieve 
bus safety. 

 

 

711.3 - Student Transportation for Extracurricular Activities (no changes) 
 
The board in its discretion may provide school district transportation for extracurricular 
activities including, but not limited to, transporting student participants and other students to 
and from extracurricular events. 
 



Students participating in extracurricular events, other than those held at the school district 
facilities, may be transported to the extracurricular event by school district transportation 
vehicles or by another means approved by the superintendent.  Students attending 
extracurricular events, other than those held at the school district facilities may be transported 
to the extracurricular event by school district transportation vehicles. 
 
Students, who are provided transportation in school district transportation vehicles for 
extracurricular events, will ride both to and from the event in the school vehicle unless 
arrangements have been made with the building principal or the athletic director prior to the 
event.  A student’s parent may personally appear and request to transport the student home 
from a school-sponsored event in which the student traveled to the event on a school district 
transportation vehicle. 
 
It is the responsibility of the superintendent to make a recommendation to the board annually 
as to whether the school district will provide the transportation authorized in this policy.  In 
making the recommendation to the board, the superintendent will consider the financial 
condition of the school district, the number of students who would qualify for such 
transportation, and other factors the board or superintendent deem relevant. 

  

Approved December 16, 2013      
Reviewed November 11, 2013  August 2, 2023   
Revised November 26, 2018   

 

 

711.4 - Student Transportation for Summer School Program (no changes) 
 
Transportation to and from the student’s attendance center for summer school instructional 
programs is within the discretion of the board.  It is the responsibility of the superintendent to 
make a recommendation regarding transportation of students in summer school instructional 
programs at the expense of the school district.  In making the recommendation to the board, 
the superintendent will consider the financial condition of the school district, the number of 
students involved in summer school programs, and other factors deemed relevant by the board 
or the superintendent. 
 
The school district may use school vehicles for transportation to and from summer 
extracurricular activities.  The superintendent will make a recommendation to the board 
annually regarding their use. 

  

Approved December 16, 2013      
Reviewed November 26, 2018  August 2, 2023   
Revised November 26, 2018 
 



 
711.5 - Transportation of Non-Resident and Nonpublic School Students (no changes) 
 
The board has sole discretion to determine the method to be utilized for transporting 
nonresident and nonpublic students.  Nonresident students paying tuition may be, and resident 
students attending a nonpublic school accredited by the State Department of Education, will be 
transported on an established public school vehicle route as long as such transportation does 
not interfere with resident public students’ transportation.  Nonresident and nonpublic school 
students will obtain the permission of the superintendent prior to being transported by the 
school district. 
 
Parents of resident students who provide transportation for their children attending a 
nonpublic school accredited by the Iowa Department of Education will be reimbursed at the 
established state rate.  This reimbursement is paid only if the school district receives the funds 
from the state.  If less than the amount of funds necessary to fully reimburse parents of the 
nonpublic students is received by the school district, the funds will be prorated. 
 

The charge to the nonresident students is determined based on the students’ pro rata share of 
the actual costs for transportation.  The parents of these students are billed for the student’s 
share of the actual costs of transportation.  The billing is according to the schedule developed 
by the superintendent.  It is the responsibility of the superintendent to determine the amount 
to be charged and report it to the board secretary for billing. 
 
Continued transportation of nonresident and nonpublic school students on a public-school 
vehicle route will be subject to resident public school students’ transportation needs.  The 
superintendent will make a recommendation annually to the board regarding the method to be 
used.  In making a recommendation to the board, the superintendent will consider the number 
of students to be transported, the capacity of the school vehicles, the financial condition of the 
school district and other factors deemed relevant by the board or the superintendent. 
 
Nonresident and nonpublic school students are subject to the same conduct regulations as 
resident public students as prescribed by board policy, and to other policies, rules, or 
regulations developed by the school district regarding transportation of students by the school 
district. 

  

Approved December 16, 2013      
Reviewed November 26, 2018    August 2, 2023 
Revised November 26, 2018  
 

 
711.6 - Transportation of Non-School Groups (no changes) 
 



Only in unusual circumstances will the board make school district transportation vehicles 
available to local nonprofit entities which promote cultural, educational, civic, community, or 
recreational activities for transporting to and from nonschool-sponsored activities in the 
state.  The local nonprofit entity must pay the cost of using the school district vehicle as per the 
current fee schedule. 
 
In the event school district transportation vehicles are made available to local nonprofit 
entities, it is the responsibility of the superintendent to develop requirements for application 
for, use of, and payment for using the school district transportation vehicles. 

  

Approved December 16, 2013      
Reviewed November 11, 2013    August 2, 2023 
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 
711.7 - School Vehicle Safety Instruction (no changes) 
  
The school district will conduct school bus and other vehicle safe riding practices instruction 
and emergency safety drills at least twice during the school year for students who utilize school 
district transportation. 
 

Each school vehicle will have, in addition to the regular emergency safety drill, a plan for 
helping those students who require special assistance to safety during an emergency. This will 
include, but not be limited to, students with disabilities. 
 
School district vehicle drivers are required to attend each safety drill.  Employees are 
responsible for instructing the proper techniques to be followed during an emergency, as well 
as safe riding practices. 

 

  

Approved December 16, 2013      
Reviewed November 11, 2013    August 2, 2023 
Revised November 26, 2018 

 

 
711.8 - Transportation in Inclement Weather (no changes) 

 

School district vehicles will not operate when weather conditions due to fog, rain, snow or 
other natural elements make it unsafe to do so. Because weather conditions may vary around 
the school district and may change quickly, the best judgment possible will be used with the 
information available. 
 



The final judgment as to when conditions are unsafe to operate will be made by the 
superintendent. The superintendent will be assisted by the actual “on location” decisions and 
reports through the director of transportation. 
 

Bus drivers will report weather and road conditions by bus radio when requested to do so. If 
radio contact is not possible, the driver will proceed to the next stop which does not present a 
hazard and make telephone contact personally, with the assistance of a student rider, monitor, 
or other person. 
 

When school is cancelled because of weather anywhere in the school district, all schools will be 
closed. Employees and students will be notified by commercial radio, television, web site 
and/or automated phone service when school is cancelled or temporarily delayed. 
  
When weather conditions deteriorate during the day after school has begun, cancellation 
notices will be announced as outlined above. Students will be returned to their regular drop-off 
sites unless weather conditions prevent it. In that case, students will be kept at or returned to 
school until they are picked up by the parents. 

  

Approved December 16, 2013      
Reviewed November 11, 2013   August 2, 2023  
Revised November 26, 2018  
 

 
711.9 - School Vehicle Idling (no changes) 
 
The board recognizes that it has a role in reducing environmental pollutants and in assisting 
students and others be free from pollutants that may impact their respiratory 
health.  Unnecessary vehicle idling emits pollutants and wastes fuel.  The board directs the 
superintendent and the director of transportation to collaborate and provide appropriate 
training and directives to bus drivers in an effort to reduce school vehicle idling time. 

  

Approved December 16, 2013       
Reviewed November 26, 2018  August 2, 2023  
Revised November 26, 2018 
 

 
711.10 - School Bus Seat Belts (no changes) 
 
It is the goal of the Red Oak Community School District Transportation Department to provide 
the safest student transportation possible. Beginning in 2020-21, the District is purchasing 
school buses equipped with lap/shoulder seat belts. The District requires that all students riding 
a school district bus equipped with seat belts wear seat belts while the bus is in motion. 



 
All students will receive instruction on the proper use of seat belts during the twice annual bus 
safety drills. Drivers are not responsible (i.e. liable) for students wearing seat belts while riding. 
Drivers are responsible for instructing students to put on seat belts prior to the bus moving. 
 

Students who may require assistance in using seat belts should ask the bus driver for help, so 
that all students are safely belted in their seat before the bus is in motion. Drivers will 
announce prior to the bus leaving that each student needs to be in their seat with the seat belt 
fastened. 
 

Students refusing to use seat belts create a safety concern for themselves and others, and are 
subject to school district disciplinary actions. Repeated refusal to wear seat belts can result in 
suspension from bus riding privileges. 
 

All adults accompanying students as bus riders are expected to utilize the lap/shoulder seat 
belts, too. 

  

Approved August 24, 2020 
Reviewed August 2, 2023 
Revised  
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



803.1 - Disposition of Obsolete Equipment 
 
School property, such as equipment, furnishings, supplies, or any other property that is not real 
property (hereafter equipment), will be disposed of when it is determined to be of no further 
use to the school district.  It is the objective of the school district in disposing of the equipment 
to achieve the best available price or most economical disposal. 
 
Whenever any equipment having a value less than $5,000 has been declared obsolete by the 
administration, the superintendent or the superintendent’s designee will dispose of such 
equipment at the best price possible and in the manner that makes the most sense 
economically.  
 
Whenever any obsolete equipment having a value less than $5,000 is to be disposed of by sale, 
the sale of the equipment shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation.  The 
publication of the sale shall be published with at least one insertion each week for two 
consecutive weeks. 
 
The Board authorizes the administration to sell or otherwise dispose of obsolete equipment 
having a value of less than $25,000 in any manner as determined by the Superintendent or 
designee to be in the best interest of the school district.  Each such sale or disposition shall be 
published once in a newspaper having general circulation in the District. 
 
Whenever any equipment having a value greater than $5,000 has been declared obsolete by 
the administration, the superintendent or the superintendent’s designee will direct the disposal 
of these items by sale consistent with Iowa law.  
 
A public hearing will be held regarding the sale or disposal of equipment with a value of 
$25,000 or more prior to the Board’s final decision.  The Board will adopt a resolution 
announcing the proposed sale or disposition and will publish notice of the time and place of the 
public hearing and the description of the property will be in the resolution.  Notice of the public 
hearing will be published at least once, but not less than 10 days and not more than 20 days, 
prior to the hearing date unless otherwise required by law.  Upon completion of the public 
hearing, the board may sell or otherwise dispose of the equipment. 
 
It is the responsibility of the superintendent to make a recommendation to the board regarding 
the method for disposing of equipment of no further use to the school district. 
 

 

Approved January 16, 2014    
Reviewed February 11, 2019   August 2, 2023           
Revised February 25, 2019 
 





 

AGREEMENT FOR SHARING INTERSCHOLASTIC ACTIVITY 

Between the Red Oak CSD and Stanton CSD 

 

 
This Agreement for Sharing Interscholastic Activity ("Agreement") is made by and between 

the Red Oak Community School District ("Red Oak") and the Stanton Community School District 

("Stanton"). 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Iowa Code Section 280.15, an Iowa school district may share the 

services of any school personnel and share the use of school equipment and facilities with another 

Iowa school district; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Iowa Code Section 280.13A, if a school district does not provide an 

interscholastic activity for its students, then the district may complete an agreement with another 

school district to provide for the eligibility of its students in interscholastic activities provided by that 

other district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties each intend to provide boys’ and girls’ bowling, boys’ and girls’ 

wrestling, and boys’ and girls’ tennis for their respective students and are willing to make that 

activity available to students of the other parties; and 
 

WHEREAS, the parties believe this Agreement will be to their mutual advantage and 

benefit. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein, the parties agree as 

follows: 

 
Section I. Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide a means by which the 

parties may proceed under the provisions of lowa Code Sections 280.15 and 280.13A to share 

activity programs for high school boys’ and girls’ bowling, boys’ and girls’ wrestling, and boys’ and 

girls’ tennis under the team name Red Oak Tigers. 

 
Section 2. Administration. Red Oak will employ the coaches for the Activity. 

Red Oak will hire, train, evaluate, discipline, and dismiss the coaches, and administer payment of 

wages and benefits due them, in accordance with Red Oak policies and contracts. Red Oak will also 

make its equipment and facilities available for the Activity, and maintain them in accordance with 

Red Oak policies. 

The parties will work cooperatively with each other, through their respective Superintendents 

and Athletic Directors, to establish a method for determining the schedule of practices, meets, and 

other events for the Activity and for administering any other actions as necessary under this 

Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party will be responsible for determining 

transportation of its respective students for Activity practices. Transportation of students for Activity 

meets or other events will be the responsibility of the host school (Red Oak). Activity meets or other 

event transportation will originate and end in the host school district (Red Oak), unless it is 

convenient to stop in the sending school district (Stanton). Participants are expected to travel to and 

from Activity meets or other events on the transportation provided by the host school (Red Oak) 

unless parents/guardians make alternate arrangements prior to the Activity meet or other events.



2 

 

 

 
 

Section 3. Costs. The sending school district (Stanton) will reimburse the host school district (Red 

Oak) $250 per participant. The sending school district (Stanton) is responsible for the cost of meals, lodging and 

other expenses associated with their students’ participation in Activities meets or other events involving out -of-

state or overnight travel.  To the extent that Red Oak pays costs attributable to Stanton, Stanton will reimburse 

Red Oak for such payment within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice from Red Oak. 

 

Any gate receipts or other revenues generated by the Activity shall be retained by Red Oak. 

 
Section 4. Insurance. Each party will carry commercial general liability insurance and automobile 

liability insurance for protection, respectively, from any liability arising out of any accidents or other occurrence 

causing any injury and/or damage to any person or property due to the actions or omissions of the insured under 

this Agreement. Such insurance coverage shall be in such limits which are commercially reasonable for school 

districts in the State of lowa. Each party will be responsible for maintaining workers' compensation insurance 

for its respective employees in the amounts statutorily required by the State of lowa. 

 
All required insurance shall be obtained from issuers of recognized responsibility licensed to do business 

in the State of Iowa. Each party shall be furnished with a certificate of insurance required under this Agreement 

upon request. The parties expressly agree and state that the maintenance of any policy of liability insurance 

pursuant to this Agreement does not waive any of the defenses of governmental immunity that may be available 

to any or all of the parties under Iowa Code Chapter 670, and such insurance policies will be endorsed 

accordingly. 

 
Section 5. Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, each party will indemnify and hold 

harmless the other parties, including their directors, officers, employees, and agents, from and against any and 

all claims, liabilities, damages, losses, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, to the extent 

arising out of the negligence or breach of this Agreement by the indemnifying party in connection with this 

Agreement. The obligations in this section shall survive termination of this Agreement with respect to any 

injury or damage occurring prior to the date of termination. 

 
Section 6. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for the 2023-2024 school year, 

commencing on July 1, 2023, and continuing until June 30, 2024. The parties may agree to terminate or 

extend the term of this Agreement by mutual agreement set forth in writing. 

 
Section 7. Compliance with Law. The parties agree to comply with all federal, state, and local laws 

and regulations and board Policies which are applicable to the performance of this Agreement. The parties will 

cooperate as needed regarding the application of good conduct rules and other student eligibility requirements 

for the Activity. 

 
Section 8. Status of the Parties. It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties that nothing 

contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create a partnership, agency, or other like relationship 

between the parties, it being specifically agreed that their relation is and shall remain that of independent parties 

to a cooperative contractual relationship. In no event shall either party be liable for the debts or obligations of 

the other party. The parties expressly agree that, as several school districts in a consortia cooperative agreement 

for a specific activity, none of them are precluded from having a separate agreement with one or more of the 

other for a different activity as provided by Iowa Administrative Code 281-36.20(3). 

 
Section 9. Assignment. No party may assign any right or obligation under this Agreement, in whole 

or in part, without the prior written consent of the other parties. This Agreement will be binding upon and will 

inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and permitted assignees. 



3 

 

 

 

Section I 0. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into by and 

between the parties hereto for their benefit. There is no intent by any party to create, imply, or 

establish a third-party beneficiary or status or rights in any person except as expressly set forth 

in this Agreement, and no such third party will have any right to enforce any benefit created or 

established under this Agreement. 

 

Section 11. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all previous 

agreements, arrangements, and understandings, and constitutes the entire agreement between 

the parties. No amendments to this Agreement shall be valid unless agreed to in writing by the 

parties. This Agreement will be governed by Iowa law and, in case any provision contained in 

this Agreement shall be declared invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

contained herein shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. The headings of this 

Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and in no way describe or limit the 

scope or intent of this Agreement or any of the provisions hereof. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly approved and executed this Agreement as of 

the dates set forth next to their signatures below. 

 

 

Red Oak Community School District 

 

______________________________________  ________________ 

Board President      Date 

 

 

Stanton Community School District 

 

______________________________________  ________________ 

Board President      Date 

 



 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• Continue evidenced-based literacy materials to help improve student achievement.  

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

o 

o 

  

13



 

 

• 

• 

 

• 

 

   

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

14



• 

 

 

• 

• 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

• 

15



• 

• 

   

 

• 

• 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  

 

 

 

16



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

  

 

 

 

• 

17



• 

• 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

o 

o 

18



   

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

19



 

 

 

  

 

• 

• 

 

• 

• 

 

• 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  

20



 

 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

• 

• 

  

  

  

21


	214.1 - Public Participation in Board Meetings
	Proposed Revisions Board Policies 706-711.pdf
	706.1 - Payroll Periods (no changes)
	706.2 - Payroll Deductions (no changes)
	706.3 - Pay Deductions (no changes)
	707 - Fiscal Reports
	707.1 - Secretary’s Reports (no changes)
	707.2 - Treasurer’s Annual Report (no changes)
	707.3 - Publication of Financial Reports (no changes)
	707.4 – Audit (no changes)
	707.5 - Internal Controls (no changes)
	707.5R1 - Internal Controls Regulation (minor additions)
	708 - District Records
	708.1 - District Records (some additions)
	709 - Insurance Program
	709.1 - Insurance Program (no changes)
	710 - School Food Services
	710.1 - School Food Program (no changes)
	710.2 - Free or Reduced Cost Meals Eligibility (revisions)
	710.3 Meal Charges and Negative Balances (no changes)
	711 – Transportation
	711.1 - Student Eligibility for School Transportation Services (minor change)
	711.2 - Student Conduct on School Transportation (no changes)
	711.2R1 - Student Conduct on School Transportation Regulation (no changes)
	711.2R2 - Use of Video Cameras on School Transportation Regulation (no changes)
	711.2R3 - School Transportation Discipline Procedures (no changes)
	711.3 - Student Transportation for Extracurricular Activities (no changes)
	711.4 - Student Transportation for Summer School Program (no changes)
	711.5 - Transportation of Non-Resident and Nonpublic School Students (no changes)
	711.6 - Transportation of Non-School Groups (no changes)
	711.7 - School Vehicle Safety Instruction (no changes)
	711.8 - Transportation in Inclement Weather (no changes)
	711.9 - School Vehicle Idling (no changes)
	711.10 - School Bus Seat Belts (no changes)

	Board Policy 803.pdf
	803.1 - Disposition of Obsolete Equipment

	Stanton Bowling Wrestling and Tennis Sharing Agreement 2023.pdf
	AGREEMENT FOR SHARING INTERSCHOLASTIC ACTIVITY
	Between the Red Oak CSD and Stanton CSD

	Preliminary Draft Agenda August 2, 2023 Work Session.pdf
	Red Oak Community School District
	604 S Broadway


	Agenda August 2, 2023 Work Session.pdf
	Red Oak Community School District
	604 S Broadway





